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PROCEEDI NGS
(Cct ober 6, 2000; 10:00 a.m)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Good norni ng, everyone.
Ri ght before we get started, | want to I et you know I'm
not going to go through ny introductory remarks |ike
have all of the other hearings. | think nost of you
have probably heard themnore times than you care to
admt. |If you do have any questions, however, Connie
Newman is in the back of the room She is the board's
public information officer, and she will be glad to
answer any questions that you have.

Susan Zingle with the Lake County Conservation
Alliance is our first speaker this norning, and she's
passed out a nunber of exhibits for the board. Before
you begi n speaking, | do want to go through themfor the
court reporter, and we can nark themas exhibits, so
then as you refer to them you can refer to themas a
certain exhibit number.

W have had four exhibits so far entered on behal f
of Ms. Zingle, so we'll start out with Zingle Exhibit 5,
and that will be the docunent entitled "Typical Daily
Load Curve" for Reliant Energy. Zingle No. 6 will be
"The Status of U S. Electricity Deregulation." It's a

one-page handout. Zingle 7 will be an Arthur Andersen
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docunent entitled "Inpact Analysis, Mallory--"
MA-L-L-ORY-- "Parcel, Libertyville, Illinois."

Zingle 8 is-- appears to be an April 2000 docunent
entitled "Effects of the Proposed I ndeck Facility on
Property Val ues, Land Use and Tax Revenues." Zingle 9
is an August 15, 2000, letter to M. Kenneth Larson from
the State's Attorney's Ofice of Lake County, Illinois,
and finally, Zingle 10 is-- is that just one article?

M5. ZINGLE: There's three articles there.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Three articles, newspaper
articles, the first one being fromthe Daily Herald
entitled "Odi nance woul d pl ace provi sos on peaker
plants.” And that's all | had; is that correct?

M5. ZINGLE: Yes, it is.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Okay. Al right. Then
whenever you're ready to begin, please feel free.

MS. ZINGLE: kay. Good norning. Thank you for
letting me address you. |Is this on?

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: There's a button on top.

MS. ZINGE: Good norning. Thank you for letting
me address you this one last tine on the issue of peaker
el ectrical generating plants. You have been presented a

wealth of information on air, noise, need, water,
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deregul ation on the electric generating industry are
conpl ex and are not yet fully revealed. As we nove

t owar ds consuner choi ce of provider, as surrounding
states deregulate, as natural gas prices rise and fall,
the industry will continue to change. The rush to site
pl ants may conpletely stop. They may all shift to

conbi ned-cycle. Half nmay go bankrupt and | eave us short
of power. W don't know.

W need to devise a regulatory systemthat can
adapt to future needs wi thout our know ng now exactly
what those needs will be. A systemthat requires
i ssuance of permts regardless of circunstances does us
all an injustice. The Governor shoul d never again have
to face a roonful of angry people who have a legitimte
probl em and have to say that his hands are tied.

One of the nost interesting things about the
process of deregul ati on has been the use of the word
peaker. Peakers are designed to conme on line quickly to
supply an extra burst of power to accommodate short
times of high demand. According to 4 CFR 75, peaker
pl ants are expected to operate about 10 percent of the

time, approximately 876 hours. Director Skinner in his
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run about 20 days a year. That's 300 hours. Here in
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Illinois, plants claimng to be peakers are being
permtted for 2300, 3300, 4,000 hours, not 300 to 900.

Well, time is the horizontal access of that
equation. The other consideration with peakers is the
vertical axis. How nuch of the total demand on any
gi ven day can be categorized as peak? In earlier
testinony, Reliant Energy provided a typical daily |oad
curve that clearly illustrates the concept. Not only do
peakers only operate 10 percent of the tine; when they
are operating, they're only providing a snmall proportion
of the total power that's needed. They're frosting on
t he cake.

As Dr. Overby explained, total demand on the Contd
system has been as high as about 21, 000 negawatts, so
peaki ng power within nmain should be about 2,000
nmegawatts, not the 22,000 negawatts we have bei ng
permtted now In the applications, nost of these
pl ants have sone indication that they plan to operate
year-round. | don't believe these are peakers. These
are internedi ate | oad pl ants.

The difficulty froma regul atory standpoi nt that
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that brings, since peakers theoretically only operate a
smal | proportion of the time and need to cone on line

qui ckly, they are not designed for efficiency. Peaker
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thermal efficiency is only in the |ow 30 percents. Heat
and water vapor go up the stacks in copious amounts. A
conbi ned-cycle plant in recapturing that steam i nproves
efficiency significantly, and a cogen plant can attain
as nmuch as 80 percent efficiency, saving both natura
gas and em ssions.

Allowing plants that are truly serving the
internedi ate | oad narket to be as wasteful as peakers is
i nappropriate. W have tal ked about m nor versus mnajor
status of these plants and the need to inplenment BACT
and LAER standards. That need is clarified and
hi ghl i ghted by sonme of the agency's answers to your
qguestions, and | will touch on those at the end of ny
presentation.

There are munici pal concerns as well. [Illinois is
far ahead of the pack in the negawatts of generating
capacity being planned. Wsconsin and M nnesota each
report about 8,000 nmegawatts. M ssouri had 5, 000
megawatts in June. As the nmap of the deregul ated

states, this next one, shows-- this cane fromthe Wl
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Street Journal in an article over the summer-- Illinois
is a deregulated island in the mddle of other regul ated
states. The plants will want to cone here because our

laws nake it possible for themto do so. The subsequent
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burden on municipalities and on our environnent is
great.

The institution of public hearings on the air
permits is a wel conme inprovenent, but nost villages are
still not prepared to deal effectively with the
technicalities of narrow y-defined air permtting.
Verena Onen and | have read all of the permits and al
of the applications, and there is a conmon el enent.

Muni ci palities don't participate in a neaningful way in
the air permtting process. Only the Great Lakes Naval
Training Center and the Village of Wadsworth subnmitted

detailed conments to the | EPA on permits fromvillages

near them

Even a nunicipality as sophisticated as
Libertyville where air quality issues took up severa
pl anni ng conmm ssi on neetings did not participate in the
hearing or submit witten conments on their permt, and
air pernmitting al one doesn't even begin to cover the

i ssues of water, noise, |and use and so forth, the other
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part of siting a power plant.

In preparation for this hearing, we have visited
Wb sites and tal ked to representatives in Wsconsin,
M nnesota, M chigan, Chio, Texas, California, Florida

and other states researching their siting practices. W
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are still in the throes of putting together a fina
report. Now that the hearings are ending, we can devote
alittle bit nore energy to that.
The practices are as different as the states
t hensel ves. Again, however, there is one comon
element. No state |eaves the siting of power-- No state
that we found yet |eaves the siting of power plants
exclusively to local control with no gui dance or
supervision fromstate environnental regulatory bodies.
W are starting to see signs of distress in
I[Ilinois. During the air permt hearings in Zion
wi t hout commenting specifically on the permt, severa
governnents did ask for help. The Villages of Wadsworth
and Wnt hrop Harbor, Benton and Newport Townshi ps,
presented resol utions opposing the plants on their
borders. Lake County board nenbers spoke. State
senators and representatives attended. U S

congr essi onal candi date Lance Pressl attended and
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coment ed on the hearings.

During the Libertyville hearings, Gayslake and
Frenmont Townshi p opposed | ndeck. Warrenville has
actually sued the Gty of Aurora and now is contributing
financially towards residents' continuing efforts.

I ndeck is suing McHenry County. Wadsworth recently
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authorized its attorney to analyze its options regarding
the Zion plants. W are developing a siting program for
peaker plants. It's the courts.

The landfill siting procedure conmonly described as
SB 172 has great potential for easing sone of the
di stress over determ ning the proper |ocations for
peaker el ectrical generating plants. Anong ot her
things, it calls for the issuance of an overall permt
to operate the facility; it provides structure for the
deci si on- maki ng process and highlights areas of concern
it provides for expert technical advice and guidance; it
provi des for input and sone control from nei ghboring
communities. Mst inportantly, it allows, | think, for
| ocal control of the process and upholds |ocal zoning
or di nances.

Now, | read that from Director Skinner's comrents

on SB 172. |'ve had sone conversations with fol ks here
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in the audience today that think that SB 172 trunps

| ocal zoning ordinances. | don't-- | want to keep an
el ement of local control in all of this. Villages have
aright to be stupid or not as they choose with sone--
W thin some paraneters, so |'m supporting SB 72
assuming that it does in fact provide for |Iocal contro

i nput .
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The first seven criteria used in the landfil
siting decision process are fairly easy to adapt to the
peakers. Points 8 and 9 pertaining to counties with
solid waste managenent plants obviously don't apply to
peaker plants. There is need, however, for nore
specificity in point 2, which is the facility is so
desi gned, |ocated and proposed to be operated that the
public health, safety and welfare will be protected.
There is no way for the local comunity or the siting
board to adequately ascertain those facts w thout, one,
the draft air pernit, including analysis of the effect
of PSD increnents and future econom c devel opnent in the
area, the point of maxi muminpact, the effect on | oca
and regional air quality in conjunction with other
pol lution sources in the area, effect on soils,

i vestock, habitat and so forth.
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Second, confirmation fromthe Illinois Water Survey
on the potential effect on the aquifer, or, alternately,
confirmation fromthe Departnment of Natural Resources
that sufficient Lake Mchigan water is available, again
in conjunction with other denands on the water supply in
the area. Now, if the advisory comrittee ultimately
does cone up with a permitting programfor water usage,

then that permt should be a part of this review as
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wel I .

Confirmation that the design of the plant will neet
I1'linois noise standards, the relationship of that noise
to the existing anbient noise | evel and the probabl e
ef fect on nearby honeowners, and then |ast, any other
permits that may be required, MPDES, stormwater runoff,
particularly contai nnent of potentially polluted water
wetland fill and any other permts that may be required.

Further, as Verena Oaen explained in Gayslake, the
appl i cant should be required to provide studies on the
ef fect on biology, visual quality, |andscaping, burning,
traffic. Q1 backup for sone of these plants is a major
concern. The Skygen plant in Zion will use 7 mllion
gal lons of oil during the season, and that is from 600

tanker trucks com ng up an unpaved townshi p road
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separating two plants that's no farther apart than the
di stance of this room Natural gas supply, inpacts of
alternatives to the proposed project, socioeconom cs and
| ocal services, jobs, taxes, roads and so forth.

We'd recommend that we-- that siting permts wll
be required of any plant nore than 30 negawatts. W
would like the Illinois Pollution Control Board to
conduct the siting hearing, providing your expertise,

your inpartiality and consistency between hearings. The
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siting hearing nmust not be schedul ed until those
separate revi ews have been conpleted. Appropriate
personnel fromthose various departnments nust attend the
siting hearing to lend their interpretation of the
permts and the standards.

Draft permits in all those areas are inportant,
because they may very well change when you start | ooking
at the confluence and the conversions of all these
different elenments comng together, and ultimately,
before the plant can be built, all three hurdles nust be
crossed, all the environnental permts, overall siting
permt fromthe Pollution Control Board and | ocal zoning
fromthe village

Notice of the hearing should be sent nuch further
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afield than they are now, including the county, state,
nmunicipalities within three mles of the plant,

i ndividual legislators, mlitary bases, all the other
regul atory agencies, including |ocal ones |like soil and
wat er conservation districts and stormwater nanagenent
and local sanitary districts, all adjacent properties
and nei ghbors within 1,000 feet of the property. In
sone areas that could probably be less, but up in ny
area, we're rural. |If you only do 300 or 400 feet,

you're only going to hit one neighbor. And prom nent
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| ocal community citizens' groups.
The file and all related docunents nust be
avai l abl e for public inspection at the offices of the
governnent body hosting the plant and/or local library.

Ri ght now, notice only goes to people that have
requested to be on the notice list, and that only
sporadically. Neither Verena nor | received notices for
the hearings of a plant in Zi on, and subsequent
ext ensi ons of public comment, we were not notified of
that either.

The Pol lution Control Board rnust keep an el ement of
control. The regulations nust be worded that the

Pol l ution Control Board may issue the permt, although a
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requi renent that you nmust respond in a certain anount of
time | think is conpletely appropriate.

The existing structure that requires the issuance
of a permt does a disservice to the community in terns
of market or regul atory change or other unantici pated
events, and | think that the electric generating
i ndustry right nowis still very much in flux. W
haven't gotten to the point where consuners choose their
own power provider yet. There's only alimted list of
t he conpani es that have signed up to provide power to

| ocal consuners. W could end up with an inbal ance
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where we've got nerchant plants here but nobody to
supply local needs, and I don't want to have the

envi ronnental regulations get in the way, which | think
they do now, of good policy decisions.

Shoul d the plant change its configuration at sone
future date, go to conbi ned-cycle or cogeneration, the
siting process nmust be reopened to account for the new
activity. Additions of new turbines in excess of 25
percent of the original capacity will also trigger a new
revi ew beyond the applicable air permtting.

But even the best-designed siting programwon't

work if the input fromthe various permtting prograns
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is superficial or slanted. A rigorous, consistent and
honest permitting systemis necessary for this process
to work. W did discuss this sone yesterday. The
technique of limting hours to limt pollution has
special risks. The arithnmetic is fairly easy. |If you

want to stay under-- just under 250 tons of nitrogen

oxi de, you divide by the em ssions fromthe turbine, and

the result is the nunber of hours the plants can
oper at e.

That's fine, but what if you have no real data on
the turbine' s performance? Wat if you don't include

t he hei ghtened em ssions in start-up or shut-down? Wat

180

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

if you underestinmate the nunber of start-ups? Wat if
you assune that hazardous pollutants are | ow and don't
bother to calculate then? Wat if you don't match the
proj ected nonths of operation with the weather
conditions? The efficiency varies wildly between cold
weat her and hot weather. |1'd like to see a skeptical
critical attitude towards permtting. The power
conpani es are not clients of the | EPA

There were a few ot her m scell aneous topics |eft

from previous neetings. W had tal ked about how

turbines are not necessarily assessed property taxes and
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the effect that that has on the comunity. In
Li bertyville, Arthur Andersen did a conparison of two
scenarios, 300,000 square feet of office space and
70,000 square feet of retail space versus a 300-negawatt
peaker generating plant and 400,000 square feet of
i ndustrial space. The industrial retail conbination
yi el ded property and sales taxes of 1.9 nmillion with
enpl oynent inpact of 1,480 jobs, while the peaker
i ndustrial conbination provided taxes of only $557, 000
and enpl oynent inpacts of 403 jobs. The details and
assunptions are in that packet.

Al so enclosed there is a copy of a letter fromM.

M ke Valler, who's the Lake County State's Attorney,
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descri bi ng how t he deci si on whet her they're personal or
real property is made, and then a study fromDr. Tolley
at the University of Chicago about the effects on
property val ues of hones near peaker-- any kind of power
pl ant .

W al so-- Mst of the conpanies that are com ng
into Illinois are significant corporations with
operations in nultiple states, and in this book I put
toget her for you are financial sunmaries that | just

pul l ed off the Internet, corporate overviews and the
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recent press releases fromten of the conpanies coni ng
here. It's good reading. They are all large
corporations, hugely profitable. Mbst of them have had
their stocks hit new highs just this year. Mst of them
do operate in nultiple states. A lot of themare

al ready neeting California BACT and LAER standard, so

see no reason why they can't do so now. Sone of the

press releases will give you an insight into how they
plan to expand in the future, how many negawatts of
power they each plan to produce, how many turbines
they're going to buy. 1| don't think we're going to have
el ectrical shortage supply in the United States for very

much | onger.

As far as noise, the board had expressed interest
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in |earning nore about vibrations, which are often how
| ow frequency sounds are perceived. Unfortunately, |
was unable to find additional information in time for
this hearing, but I will continue to work on it

Since | first prepared this presentation, we've had
the opportunity to review the 23 questions and the
answers fromthe agency that were submitted by the
board, and | do have sone conments there. Throughout - -

And we are going to subnmit detailed comments on those
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answers, but | won't do it today. But throughout the
packet, the agency seens to be focusing a |lot on the
prevention of significant deterioration rules and how
they ultimately will protect us.

The difficulty we have is that as Chris Ronai ne
submtted in his testinony in August, there were only
two of the peaker plants that trigger PSD review.
Virtually all of the peaker plants are comng in as
synthetic mnors, and so all of the protections that PSD
offers are not being inplenented in terns of the
peakers.

There was al so thoughts expressed through the
guestions that these are small sources; they are
di m nutive sources; each one does not have a significant

i mpact on the air quality. | would disagree with the
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characterization of themas snall sources, and | would
repeat the plea that we've been saying all along, that
we need very carefully to consider the cunul ative effect
of all these sources as they skirt the PSD regul ati ons
and cone in as mnors.

John Mullen, who's the attorney for Wadsworth,
filed a conment on the Skygen permt in Zion, and

think I will just quote his conments here because he
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said it better than | can. There are nore than 25
peaker plant applications pending before the | EPA, but
the |1 EPA refuses to consider the cunul ative effect of
these plants. To ignore the cumul ative effect is
violative of the | EPA nandate and is indicative of its
bias in favor of issuance of permits. This position
al so defies common sense. Commobn sense i S not
prohi bited by statute. It is the aggregate effect of
mllions of cars in the United States that has pronpted
conpr ehensi ve regul ati ons of autonobile em ssions, not
the discharge froma single car. It is totally
illogical to disregard the cumul ative effects of the
peaker pl ants.

Further, we were disappointed in the comments to
noise. In fact, | think that noise is a significant

factor in the peaker plants at |east in Lake County,
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where they are coning into residential areas and will
have an effect on hones far fromtheir |ocal source. W
need to consi der beyond just the threshold of 51 or 60
deci bel s what the underlying anbi ent noise is.

You heard from Cat hy Johnson fromRural and Cty
Preservation out in Marengo, where they're | ooking at

siting a plant in very, very al nost w | derness areas,
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wet | ands, endangered speci es, endangered plants. There
is going to be nothing to conpete with that plant for

noi se, and the noise will carry for mles. It will have
an effect on the future devel opnent of that area. In
fact, it establishes alnost an industrial beachhead out
in the mddle of nowhere.

In residential areas |ike Aurora, Bartlett, Zion
you have hones near it, and 60 deci bels nay be |ike an
air conditioner sound, but in fact, there was an air
condi tioner running in the roomwhen we had the Skygen
and Carlton permtting process, and we had to turn it
off to be able to hear ourselves talk. It further has--
it's a different character of noise. |If you go out and
you sit on your deck in the evening, you're listening to
crickets and cicadas and the wind in the trees, a
mechani cal humis a-- it's just a terrible intrusion,

even if it's not overwhel ming the other sounds. So |

185
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY
woul d I'i ke the nature of the nei ghborhood to be
consi dered as you consi der noi se consi derati ons.
Clustering is still not addressed conpletely by the

PSD rules. Zion is bragging that there are six
conpani es talking to them They are down-- They are

south of the Pleasant Prairie coal-fired plant; they are
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south of the Pleasant Prairie 1, 000-negawatt
conbi ned-cycl e plant; they are north of the Waukegan
coal -fired plant; they are north of the M dwest
Ceneration peaker plant; they are north of the North
Shore Sanitary District; but alnost all of those plants
are consi dered technically m nor sources.

Ri ght now, thanks to M. Skinner's generosity, they
did in fact do nodeling on those, but if we were to play
it by the rules, they would all be considered m nor
sources; there would be no nodeling; there would be no
public hearing; there would be no public coment period,
those pernmits would just be issued. So it's inportant
t hr oughout those 23 questions that all the protections
that are expressed in those questions, including
nodel i ng, BACT and LAER, public review, appeal
technically all disappear if these are m nor sources,
and that can be corrected by adjusting the Iist of 28

exceptions either by taking out the word "steam

186
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

generators" or by including peakers as a separate
cat egory.

So to sumari ze, do peaker plants need to be
regul ated nore strictly than Illinois current air

quality statutes and regul ati ons provi de? Yes. Peaker
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pl ants escape maj or designation through the wording of
that 28 exceptions listed in the regs. There is no
reason that | can see for peakers to be regul ated | ess
strictly than any other electrical generating unit.

One of the hazards in this process is limting our
revi ew and our thoughts to those plants currently being
permtted. W have to consider the potential harmif
all future plants are pernitted in this sane way and
where the industry may be going. G ven deregul ation, we
don't know how many plants that will be.

We shoul d be conservative in our permtting
programs. As it is, we are encouraging less efficient
technol ogy because the dirtier plants can be pernmtted
easier than the clean plants. W also have to consi der
the overall effect of these plants. On page 29 of the
23-question response, the nodel ers did acknow edge t hat
so far, peakers have a small but noticeable effect on
t he ozone.

Question nunber two: Do peaker plants pose a
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uni que threat or a greater threat than other types of
state-regulated facilities with respect to air
pol | ution, noise pollution or groundwater or surface

water pollution? | would say yes. Peaker plants are
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not as efficient in their use of natural gas and in
limting em ssions of NOx as conbi ned-cycl e or
cogeneration plants. They are inherently nore polluting
than other natural gas-fired configurations, and
according to M. Zak, peakers pose a particul ar noise
threat. This is exacerbated by the siting phil osophy
that puts these plants in residential areas.

They al so do provide sone threat to groundwater
usage. Most peaker plants don't use a |ot of water, but
that's not universal by any neans. The Skygen plant in
Zi on uses power augnentation, which involves steam and
the Skygen plant in Zion will be using 2.1 mllion
gallons of water a day. That is nore than the entire
city of Zion uses.

As they | ook at water usage and perhaps a
permtting programfor water, you need to consider the
i ssue of thresholds too. The plants right now are adept
at-- and | think it's deliberate, but | can't really
prove that-- nultiple locations, all of which keep them

under the 250-ton Iimt. Reliant has three plants
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bet ween-- including McHenry and Lake. Indeck is trying
for three locations between McHenry and Lake Counti es.

John Notch with Carlton is involved with ABB in
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Bartlett, with Carlton Power in Zion and with a proposed
pl ant in Waukegan

By splitting the plants into multiple |ocations,
they come under the thresholds. They do it with NO,
and | suspect they will do it with water too. So with
all of these, sonme provision to | ook at ownership of
multiple plants; this corporation is having a certain
ef fect on our environment, not just each individua
| ocati on.

Question three: Should new or expendi ng peaker
pl ants be subject to siting requirenments beyond
appl i cabl e zoning requirenents? Yes. The difficulty
nmuni ci palities are having-- is having is evidenced by
t he nunber of court cases. Most nmunicipalities wll
site only one peaker. They never gain experience; they
never devel op experti se.

Question four: |f the board determ nes that peaker
pl ants should be nore strictly regulated or restricted,
shoul d additional regulations or restrictions apply to
currently permtted facilities or only to new facilities

and expansions? | believe strongly that they should
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apply to currently permtted and pending facilities.

W' ve repeatedly asked for a noratoriumto stop the
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permtting while we can get this stuff sorted out. For
what ever reason, everything is still going forward

The power conpani es are very aware of the
controversy, very aware of the existence of these
hearings, and, just like the NOx SIP call, that everyone
will have to apply within the trading program that
everyone will have to conply with it. | believe
what ever new regul ati ons cone out of these hearings
everyone should have to conply with

So what we need, we need, we ask, that you
recomend to the Governor and the legislature that we
enact a noratoriumon the air pernmits in the veto
session to give us all some breathing roomand to nake
the playing field level, nmake it fair for everyone. W
ask that you lift the NOx waiver. Mre NOX is not a
good thing. W need less NOx, not nmore. W ask that
you adopt new air regul ations, including peaker plants
with those 28 exceptions, and we ask for a siting
programto help the nunicipalities determne what to do
wi t h peakers.

In the course of some of the conversations, there

have been sone ot her questions at sone of the hearings
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that just | will briefly address. | believe Menber
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McFawn in Gaysl ake asked why we didn't conme sooner to
the Pollution Control Board. Frankly, ignorance. 1've
wor ked in Lake County about eight years, but |'ve never
done anything on a state |evel before. | didn't even
know you existed, and I'mgoing to renmedy that in the
future.

Second, the legislature was already well involved
inthis by the tinme we got involved. A year ago,
Representati ve Franks in Wodstock was hol di ng his own
publ i c hearings on peaker plants. By Decenber, the Lake
County Board was naking | egi slative reconendations for
a noratoriumfor siting. By the spring session, Senator
Lauzen, Senator Klemm Mary Lou Cowishaw, Tim Schmtz,
Tom Cross-- | nean, it just exploded, and we coul dn't
get it-- it was like herding cats. W couldn't get it
organi zed. oviously a lot of interest, but no focus or
di recti on.

It was about at that time we did learn the
exi stence of the board and start to do sone research
about would this be a good place to go, and about the
time we made up our mind to do it was when the CGovernor
trunped us and sent it to you anyway. So you're here.

It's been a wonderful experience. You have now been
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exposed to the environnental conmunity in six counties,
and | don't think you're going to be invisible anynore.

Lastly, soneone yesterday asked about have there
been contacts in other states. Yes. | have gotten
phone calls from people in CGeorgia, Colorado, Rhode
I sland, M chigan and Washington State all starting to
face the sanme problens as their city deregul ates too, so
this will be a national issue sooner rather than later.

Wth that, |'mavailable for questions. Thank you
for your tinme.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Thank you agai n, M.
Zi ngl e.

MS. ZINGLE: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: We'll open it up for
guestions. Before we do take a question, the binder
t hat you present ed- -

MS. ZINGLE: Yeah. That'll be-- | guess that's 11.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Be Zingle Exhibit 11, and
is there atitle on the cover or anything?

M5. ZINGLE: "Business Overview, Electrical
Cenerati ng Conpanies."

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Ckay. Thank you.

M5. ZINGLE: Yes?

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Well, ['Il start. That was a

192
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

very nice sunmary.

MS. ZINGLE: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: | know you' ve been coming to
all the other hearings, and-- thank you, Dr. Flenal--
and | do want to thank you for that, and you certainly
have gi ven your group or your personal views on this
very-- a good focus for us to read over and to
contenpl ate and consider the entire record along with
your points.

MS. ZINGLE: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Because of that, | don't have
a lot of questions, but you did say sonething, and naybe
I"'mtaking it out of context, but I'd like you to
el aborate on it, if you would. You said that
envi ronnental regs can get in the way of good policy
decisions, and | didn't know if you neant the current
regul ati ons or exactly what you meant. Could you
expl ai n?

MS. ZINGE: | nean the current regul ations, and
al so mean what coul d happen in the future. Qur current
regul ations require the i ssuance of a permt in 180
days, and so the | EPA is grounding new pernits. They
have to issue themor prove that in fact it is going to

violate the Cean Air Act, which | think could be
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proven, but it takes a political will to take that stand
to start denying permts when you have a history of
wor ki ng cooperatively with the industry.

So | think we've erred on the side of being way too
|l oose with this and hurting our-- potentially hurting
our environment. | think California went a little bit
the other way and was so restrictive and didn't see the
need for electricity increasing at the speed that it was
that they left thenselves flat-footed, but they didn't
go back and change their policies to open the door a
l[ittle bit wder either

There was an article in-- on the Internet before
left, the California SO is now soliciting devel opnent
proposal s from power conpanies to try to get California
over the hunp. Well, | can send them about 50, if
they'd like to go. And particularly where dereg is not
yet sorted out, we don't know where this is going to
happen. W don't know how rmany power conpani es are
going to conme inin total. W could becone the power
generating capital for the entire Mdwest. |f the other
states don't deregulate, folks, we're the-- we're it,
and | don't necessarily know what that means for us, and
| don't want to see a regulation that requires the

i ssuance of permits, encourage that.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you.

MS. ZINGLE: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  You al so suggested that
plants that are 30 negawatts or greater be subject to
the siting hearing. Any reason that you picked the 30
megawat t s?

M5. ZINGLE: Well, | copied it fromWsconsin, who
requires a full environnental inpact statenment for
anyt hi ng over 30 negawatts. It is-- If it's overly
restrictive on the industry, we'd be anenable to talking
about that. It was a negotiating point that was pl aced
to start with a precedence in Wsconsin, because that's
where they start at.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA: (kay. You al so suggest ed
that the board conduct the siting hearings.

M5. ZI NGLE:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  That devi ates from what we
currently have for new or regional pollution contro
facilities. |Is there any particular reason to-- R ght
now, that's with the local community, that type of
siting. Any reason that you would have it be a state
boar d?

MS. ZINGLE: Partly because the-- not that

landfills aren't conplex. They are, but they tend to
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focus on sone groundwater issues and traffic issues that
can be easily visualized by sonebody living there, the
hei ght of the landfill, how nuch burning you need, that
sort of thing. The environnmental effects of peaker
plants tend to be a little bit nore esoteric. How many
villages really want to tal k about NOx and ozone? Cur
experience is that they don't participate in the air
permtting process even though they can, and | don't
know t hat having a siting hearing where they just-- we
spell out you have to talk about it but they don't know
what to do with it benefits as much.

This board's got the advantage. You're all
technically capable. You have technical experts that
you can call on to guide you and to guide the village,
and fromwhat |'ve seen so far, you are inpartial. If
you start to see a pattern in air pernmits tine and tine
and tine again, there beconmes the policy input that you
can provide sone direction to the course as opposed to
each of them bei ng handl ed i ndividual ly.

You woul d al so have the ability to weigh things.

It would be possible for the criteria for each
i ndi vidual environmental permit to be nmet and yet not
have it be a good site for a peaker plant, or perhaps

even for it to be a real close call on environnenta
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permt but overall it would be a good place and it
shoul d have a power plant there either because the grid
needs it or because there's no other better place or we
need nore power.

You woul d have the ability to encourage the
pl acenent of power plants as well, and I would like to
see it get out of-- | want the local villages to have
sormeone to help them | don't-- | want themto be able
to say no. | don't want to violate their zoning
standards. | wouldn't want you to cone into Lake County
and place a plant. But the process needs oversight.

The W sconsin process does trunp | ocal zoning and
it does end up in lawsuits. There's a plant going in in
Dane County, the RockGen plant, which is just a clone of
what we're getting in Zion, and that's been bl oody. The
Wsconsin siting authority decided that they are over
the protests of the village and | ocal residents, and
it's going to be in the Environnental Appeals Board and
it's going to court. It's a mess.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you. One just point of
information. The Exhibit No. 2 that you gave to us, you
nmentioned during your testinony that it came fromthe

VWall Street Journal ?
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MS. ZINGLE: Yes, and | no longer have the
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article. 1'll have to go find it.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWA: | f you could just tell us the
date so that we could nore quickly locate it. And
t hank you again for your comments today and ot her days.

MS. ZINGE: Ch, thank you.

CHAI RVAN MANNING | just want to thank you, M.
Zingle, for your very effective participation in these
proceedi ngs. You' ve been here throughout all these
proceedi ngs and we really appreciate your conments and
your testinony and your participation.

M5. ZINGLE: Thank you for letting ne participate
as nmuch as | have. |'mgrateful.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Thank you very nuch

MS. ZINGLE: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Next we have the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Agency, and as they're com ng
forward, | do have a couple of clarifications that |I'd
like to go through on the record. As | was conpiling
the list of exhibits fromthis matter, | noticed a
coupl e of inconsistencies or changes that needed to be
made, and | wanted to note those on the record so it

woul d be easy for people to followalong in this
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First thing I noticed, fromour August 27 hearing
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that was held in Chicago, when the industry
representatives spoke, the exhibits were nunbered 1
t hr ough what ever chronol ogically without reference to
the individual actually offering any of the exhibits, so
t hat has been changed. For exanple, Indeck Energy
offered two exhibits, and those would be referred to as
Indeck 1 and 2, and then you would begin again with the
next industry, MAIN, for exanple, MAIN Exhibit 1, as
opposed to following along with 3, 4, 5 after Indeck. |
hope that clarifies that problem

Next, during our hearing in Naperville, Du Page
County Board offered a report entitled the "Versar
Report," V-E-R-S-A-R The report they actually
presented to us during the hearing was a draft report.
A final report has now been filed, and it will be
substituted in the record as Du Page County Board
Exhibit 1 fromthat Naperville hearing

Next thing, there were a couple of itenms that were
presented but were not actually accepted into the record
during the hearings. The first one was Chicago Lega

Cinic. Keith Harley's comments have been now |isted as
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Chicago Legal dinic Exhibit 2. And Du Page County
Board again, Paul Hoss offered his witten comments into

the record, and they have been marked now as Du Page
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County Board Exhibit 3.

Two other things. Susan Zingle presented a nunber
of exhi bits throughout sone of our earlier hearings, and
sormehow on the record we got off in the nunbering
process, so that has now been corrected in the fina
exhibit list that will be available to our notice |ist
and on the Wb site.

And | ast but not |east, the Illinois Conmmrerce
Conmmi ssion filed a notion for leave to file instanter
their witten prefiled testinmony on August 23, and
just wanted to nake sure that was officially granted on
the record, and that prefiled testi nony was accepted
into the record.

Those were the only points of clarification that I
had. Wth that, | do also want to add that we have one
additional board staff nenber present who will be
conducting sonme of the questioning of the Illinois EPA
It's Richard MG Il up to ny right. He is the board's
senior attorney in charge of research and witing, so he

will be participating in the questioning of the agency
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panel . Do you have anything to add?
CHAl RVAN MANNING  Yeah, | think | do. | had a
coupl e of comments nyself. First of all, | wanted to

comend the agency for your participation in this
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proceeding. In a very short tine frame, we asked you a
ot of significant questions that we've heard through
the course of this proceeding, and | for one appreciate

t he docunent that you gave us and think that you did a

very fine job giving us well-inforned responses to those
guesti ons.
What 1'd Iike to say as well, in terns of the

existing laws and regul ations that apply to peaker
plants as well as all industry throughout the state of
Il1linois, | think you' ve done a fine job in terns of
appl ying those laws and trying to be publicly
responsi ble. This issue has hit you hard too as well in
terns of all of the work that you've done in terns of
trying to be publicly responsible, and | comrend you and
your agency and Director Skinner for trying to be
publicly responsible on this particular issue.

What | also would like to say is that our job--
it's our job now to determ ne whether those existing

laws and regul ations are effective and to nmake that--
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the reconmrendation to the CGovernor and the nenbers of
the legislative assenbly, so we don't intend really to
ask you a lot of policy questions today in terns of what
you think we should tell the Governor, okay? But we do

have a | ot of questions that we'd like to go through
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your responses in terns of making sure that we

under stand those responses and naki ng sure that we have
a full and conplete record regarding all of the |ot of
conplex issues in terns of the air permtting program
and the air regulations that currently exi st and those
that may exist in the future

So that's kind of where we are with all of this,
and 1'd like you to go ahead and go forward. Do you
want to go through your responses or would you |ike us
just to begin asking you questions?

MR PH LLIPS: W have no formal presentation
Madam Chairman, so if you want to just start asking
guestions- -

CHAIl RVAN MANNING  So we did a pretty good job
respondi ng to everything you were going to say, right?

MR PH LLIPS: Yeah

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG W sort of asked you everyt hi ng

we t hought was |eft open and that might be gray in the
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record, and that's kind of what our hope was and that we
woul d go ahead and ask them Ckay.

MR PH LLIPS: Wuld you like me to introduce the
panel ?

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Go ahead

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Pl ease. That's what |
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was going to ask you to do

MR PHLLIPS: M nane is Scott Phillips, and I'm
an attorney with the Illinois EPA. Imediately to ny
right is Geg Zak. To ny left is Chris Romaine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  You may want to spell the
names for the--

MR PHLLIPS: Ch, okay. ROMA-I-NE To Chris'
left is Todd-- T-O-D-D-- Marvel-- MA-R V-E-L-- and to
Todd's left is Steve Nightingale, NI-GH T-E- N--

MR. NI GHTI NGALE: "I ."

MR PHLLIPS: -- I-NGA-L-E

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: | will note also that the
responses to the board's questions that were filed by
t he | EPA have now been docketed in as Public Commrent
Nunmber 9, and they are available on the board' s Wb
site.

MR PH LLIPS: And depending on the nature of the
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guestions, also we have Kathleen Bassi, B-A-SS-1, who
is sitting right behind us here, who may fromtine to
time be responding to questions as well. M ssing today
is Rob Kaleel. M. Kaleel was not available today. He
was here yesterday. M. Kaleel was our expert on
nodel i ng, so questions that deal with the nodeling

i ssue, we just need to preserve those questions in the
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record and then we will respond prior to the Novenber 6
closure date for the record in this matter

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: That' Il be fine.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Thank you. | have a nunber
of questions that focus on the area of NOx eni ssions
fromthe peaker plants, and again, | appreciate, as the
Chai rman has indi cated, the depth of your responses to
our questions in that area, but | think nonethel ess
there's sonme particular aspects of it that, if nothing
el se, in fleshing out on the oral part of this record
m ght be useful

Let nme first go to the issue of the NOX waiver, and
| would direct you to your responses on page 16, and the
page 16 I'mreferring to is in PC Nunber 9, Public
Comment No. 9. You were posed a question, and | will

read it, and then | would like it if you could just
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maybe read your answer into the record and we can tal k

about sone particular parts of it. The question posed

was: "Please comment on whether the United States

Envi ronnental Protection Agency (USEPA) shoul d revoke

the nitrogen oxi des (NOx) waiver with respect to

IIlinois." My we have your answer to that question?
MS. BASSI: |'m Kathl een Bassi answering this

question. The renoval of the NOx wai ver woul d have
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ram fications that are well beyond the scope of this
proceedi ng. Therefore, the NOx wai ver should not be
revoked based sol ely on peaker plants.

As stated in the agency's testinony, current
nodel i ng shows that em ssions fromcurrently perntted
and proposed peaker plants will not interfere with the
area's ability to attain the ozone NAAQS, which stands
for national anbient air quality standard. The deci sion
of the-- on the NOx wai ver should be made by USEPA in
the context of its review of the attainment
denonstration for the Chicago area

To the extent that reducing em ssions from peakers
i s deermed appropriate, these reductions can be
acconpl i shed through the inposition of control neasures

that are nore appropriate to address this group of
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sources rather than by revocation of the NOx waiver.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Thank you. 1In that first
sent ence of your response, you observe that there are
ram ficati ons beyond those in this proceeding. Could
you give us just a flavor of what you're thinking about
there in terns of the ramfications?

MS. BASSI: The NOx waiver does not limt the scope
of control measures that would be required or reductions

that would be required to just power plants. It would
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i nvolve all sources of NOx.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: And so its renoval, shoul d
that occur, has effects in-- give us some exanpl es of
t hose sources that you're referring to again, just for
the record.

MS. BASSI: Ckay. Sone exanples woul d include
i ndustrial sources that in the Chicago area emt nore
than 25 tons per year of NOX, because the definition of
nmaj or source for ozone precursor pollutants is 25 tons,
so this would include-- this could include any nunber of
types of sources so long as they would emit NOX.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Okay. |n your second
par agraph, the |ast sentence says, "The decision on the

NOx wai ver should be nmade by USEPA in the context of its
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review of the attainnent denonstration for the Chicago
region." |Is that advisory, that that's how it should be
done, from your perspective, or that that's the way it
will occur?

MS. BASSI: That's the way it will occur. The NOX
wai ver is issued, and it provides that USEPA may revi ew
the NOx waiver in the context of the attainnent
denonstrations at the appropriate tinme. There's nothing
in the waiver that bars controls, but they will review

the waiver-- they may review the waiver again during the
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review of the attai nment denonstration.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: W are facing attai nnent
denonstration fairly shortly, are we not?

M5. BASSI: That's correct.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: And are we therefore to read
that we can anticipate that USEPA will in fact be
review ng the NOx wai ver as part of that upcom ng
denonstrati on?

M5. BASSI: The waiver that was issued says that
they may reviewit.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: That they may. |It's an
opportunity for them it's not nmandatory that they so

do.
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M5. BASSI: That's correct.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Does the agency have any
anticipation of whether they will be review ng the NOX
wai ver in the context of a new denonstration?

M5. BASSI: | expect that they will review what we
have to say. Wth the attainment denonstration, we have
to submit air quality nodeling. You saw sone
prelimnary air quality nodeling that Rob presented in
the first of these-- this set of hearings, so they wll
review that air quality nodeling. They will-- You know,

NOx is of course the issue that they're | ooking at at
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this point in time, but the attai nnent denonstration
involves far nmore than NOx. It also involves all the
VOC regs that we've-- you' ve adopted over the years and
conformty. |It's far larger than just the regul ations
that we have adopted here, and-- in Illinois, and they
will be looking at all of that.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Do you have any expectation
that USEPA will be on their own volition revoking the
NOx wai ver ?

MS. BASSI: | have no expectation one way or the
other on that. | would anticipate that they-- They

never forget it. It's always there. But | don't-- |
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couldn't say whether they would revoke it or not revoke
it.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Wien you talk to these fol ks,
do they remind you that it's out there?

MS. BASSI: Periodically.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Thank you. In your | ast

paragraph to the same response-- and again, for the

record, I'mreferring to page 16 of Public Comment 9--
and I'lIl read it again just to keep us focused on the
issue. "To the extent that reducing em ssions from

peakers is deermed appropriate, these reductions can be

acconpl i shed through the inposition of control neasures
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that are nore appropriate to address this group of
sources rather than the revocation of the NOx waiver."
VWhat ki nd of reduction neasures are you contenpl ating
that are appropriate for these control mneasures?

M5. BASSI: | don't know that we have determ ned
that anything is appropriate, anything in particular is
appropriate. What we're trying to say here is that if
the board decides or-- to recomend that there be
control neasures applied to this group of sources or
this type of sources, that those control neasures do not

necessarily-- that they don't involve the NOx waiver.
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There is no bar to control-- NOx control neasures that
is established by the NOx wai ver, so if the board deens
it appropriate to recommend that there be additiona
control neasures applied to these sources of NOx, they
can be done without revocation of the waiver.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Ckay. | would like next to
expl ore the nexus between the NOx SIP call and peaker
power plants, but perhaps for the record, to keep the
subj ect matter collectively together, are there--
woul d certainly yield if anybody m ght have questions
regardi ng the NOx wai ver.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: | have one question as a

followup to Dr. Flemal's. [|'Il speak loudly. What
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kind of tine frame are you anticipating with respect to
this process, the attainnent denonstration?

MS. BASSI: Qur attainment denonstration is due by
Decenber 31, 2000, and we nust hold a public hearing,
which will be noticed fairly quickly in order for us to
conpl ete the hearing process and the foll owup coment
process and, you know, gathering all the conments.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Thank you.

MR RAO | had one followup to Dr. Flemal's

questions. Wen you tal k about the other ramfications
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of revoking a NOx waiver, you nentioned how it would

af fect other sources, and on page 17, the first

par agr aph, you know, you state that-- you know,
regarding the inplications for NOx enmtters, you say it
woul d have no effect on existing and currently permtted
peakers as there would be no retroactive effect. Could
you explain a little bit nore as to, you know, the basis
of that statenent?

MS. BASSI: Sure. Wat you're referring to,
believe, is in sub-question A at the top of page 17 of
Publ i c Conment 9.

MR RAO  Yes.

MS. BASSI: This particular coment goes

specifically to the Chicago Legal Cinic's petition for
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revocati on of the NOx wai ver for New Source Review. M
understanding is they-- is that this petition does not
seek bl anket revocation of the NOx waiver. It seeks
revocation only for New Source Review. And if this were
to occur, it's our interpretation that New Source Revi ew
woul d apply prospectively, not retroactively. But the
NOX wai ver covers nore than New Source Review. This is
just one elenent of the waiver.

MR RAO Ckay. Do you believe that the NOX wai ver
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may be revoked on a partial basis?

MS. BASSI: The NOx waiver provides that where a
state granted a waiver, control sources, that the waiver
is renmoved with regard to those sources, so | guess ny
answer is USEPA has interpreted itself or has deened
that it is partially renoved in certain cases.

MR RAO Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Let me nmove on, then, to sort
of the second area | wanted to explore, which is again
t he nexus between what's going on in a closer rel ated
regul atory proceedi ng, the NOx emi ssions trading NOx SIP
call rule and what we anticipate will be
soon-to-be-filed additional regulatory proposals before
the board that deal with yet other aspects of the NOX

SIP call.
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I"mnot quite sure howto best go at this, so let's
try a couple of ways and see if we get the record
fleshed in the process. Let ne ask this question
first: Does the agency ever have occasion to wite a
permit with a permt limtation that is larger than what
you actually expect will be the em ssions?

MR ROVAINE: Certainly.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Ckay.
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MR ROVAINE: W issue pernits for potentia
em ssi ons based on an application in which the applicant
has put forth certain proposed operating paraneters and
em ssion rates. |f those potential emnissions conply
with applicable regulations and in fact those potential
em ssions can be permtted, we issue a permt for those
potential em ssions.

Quite often we have a belief that actual em ssions
are nuch smaller than the permtted em ssions, and a
sinpl e exanple of that, if you visited the El wood
facility, the Elwood facility is permtted for sonething
on the order of 290 tons per year of NOx em ssions from
its four sinple-cycle turbines. |In the 1999 tine frane,
it only emtted sonmething | ess than 70 tons per year of
NOX, so that's about a quarter of its permtted

em ssions of NOx. |In that particular year, obviously
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t hat depends on the particul ar neteorol ogy, the
tenperature, how nuch demand there is for that facility,
but we permt maxi mumem ssions. W don't pernmit actua
em ssi ons.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Okay. | have two whys that
followin this. Wy do you do this and why are

somnetines the em ssions actually | ess than the potenti al
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em ssi ons?

MR ROVAINE: | think I'Il do the second one. The
em ssions are less than the permt emissions to the
extent that a facility does not operate to the ful
level of utilization projected in the application, so if
a facility such as Elwood has cone in and requested a
permt that would allow it to operate for 1500 hours per
year but it only operates sonmewhere in the range of 600
hours per year due to the particular denand in that
year, it will sinply have | ess eni ssions.

In addition, people routinely apply for pernmit
[imtations that provide them sone safety margin of
conpl i ance, depending on-- and that margin of conpliance
can be significant conpared to what they're prepared to
represent in the pernmt application. Wat they have is
a guarantee for the nmanufacturer.

In terms of NOx em ssions, it would appear that
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peopl e are consistently giving us nunbers and pernits
that they can conply with by at least a 10 to 20 percent
safety margin, and that's sonething-- a consequence of

t he guarant ee process where when the manufacturer
comits to a conpany, that they're going to conply with

a particular emssion rate, they want to have sone
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margi n of safety that can, you know, assure that the
turbi ne doesn't performexactly as it did at the
previous installation; if there's slight differences in
how it was installed or whatever, that they would stil
not be under obligation to correct the problem in fact,
their guarantee is still good.

In terms of the other aspect of it, | think the
sinpl e answer is we exam ne those potential em ssions.
If those potential emissions conply with applicable
regul ations, they're entitled to the permt. W are not
in a position to dictate they have a smaller pernit or a
permit that allows |esser em ssions unless applicable
regul ations or regulatory prograns demand that that
facility have | esser em ssions.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: |In that context, is there
anything in the current NOx SIP call that-- proposed
regul ations that is a driver for |esser em ssions than

maxi mum permtted?
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M5. BASSI: |'ll answer-- |I'mKathleen Bassi. [I'll
answer that one. The NOx SIP call places a cap on the
number of allowances that the State can issue. The NOX
SIP call requires that each emtter of NOx that is

subject to this program surrender an all owance for each
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ton of NOx that's enmitted during what they call the
control period. The control period runs fromMay 1
t hrough Septenber 30 of every year, except 2004, when it
starts May 31. Therefore, the SIP call does present
limtations on operation in terns of the requirenent
t hat each peaker, in this case, have an all owance for
each ton that it emts.

MR ROVAINE: Let ne follow up with that with sort
of a further point that comes up in a previous
di scussion. Because of the difference between permitted
em ssions and actual em ssions, allocations under the
NOx SIP call are al so based on historical operation, so
peopl e do not obtain allowances after we have historica
operating data based on what they have in the permts.
They get the all owances based on the nunber of BTU s
they've put into their conmbustion units. So at that
point, the NOx SIP call ties back to actual |evels of
operati on.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Do you actually get to the
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poi nt where you rewite the permit with a lower linmt as
aresult of this tieback?
MR, ROVAINE: No.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: It still stays as actua
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em ssi ons, although there is nonethel ess sone kind of
control on the potential-- the actual em ssions related
to the NOx SIP call.

MR ROVAINE: Sinply, the point was that their
al |l ocations are based on what they've actually done.
They still have a permt that allows them additional
capacity. In fact, if there's a denand for the power,
if there's an extrenely hot year or Commonweal th
Edi son-- or Mdwest Ceneration, | should say-- has
addi ti onal outages of units that are unable to provide
power, they can operate legitimately within the bounds
provided by their permt.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: |s the panel famliar with
two exhibits which were received yesterday entitled
Dorge Exhibit 2 and Dorge Exhibit 3? Have you fol ks had
an opportunity to actually look at that?

MR PHILLIPS: | don't think we have, Dr. Flenal.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: | think nmaybe sone of the
questions that | have woul d be best answered if we get a

copy of these before the agency. M ss Dorge, do you by

216
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

any chance have anot her copy of these we coul d--
HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Wiy don't we go off the

record here for a second and we can track down sone
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copi es.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Wiy don't we take about a
ten-mnute break here. W'Il cone back. Thank you.

(Brief recess taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Al right. W'Ill go back
on the record. Gkay. | think we've received copies of
t he docunents that we were |ooking for, Dorge Exhibits 2
and 3, so, Dr. Flemal, if you would Iike to continue
wi th your questioning.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Thank you. First off, let ne
put you at ease. |'mnot intending to | ook at any
particular line itens or details in this chart, but I
t hought it would be a useful backdrop for us to continue
to explore this question or questions related to NOX
em ssions from power plants.

Let's look collectively, if we can, at Dorge
Exhibit 3. One finds there in the list of permits
i ssued that were PSD, prevention of significant
deterioration permits, a list of NOx tons em ssions.

Coul d you expl ain what those nunbers are? Those are--
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You tell ne what they are.

MR ROVAINE: | believe what has been reported on
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this is the total tons per year of NOx that the facility
has been permtted to emit. Following that is
information on the PPM of em ssions, which is a
short-termlimt on individual turbines.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: |If | were to then obtain any
one of these specific permits and look at it-- ook in
it, I would find this nunber as the nunber the agency
has permtted that facility to admt NOX.

MR ROVAINE: | believe so, yes.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: And that would be the
12-nonth running average? |Is that a correct way to | ook
at it?

MR ROVAINE: It would be a 12-nonth running
total. | wouldn't be surprised-- So it would be sinply
determ ned January-- well, in Decenber you go back to
January through Decenber; in January, in January through
February, so you'd have a new determ nation every nonth.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Do you know or do you have
any way to estinmate what portion of any one of these
em ssions totals woul d be ozone season as opposed to the
ot her nonths of the year? Perhaps we ought to note on

the record what we nean by ozone season as well.
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MR ROVAINE: Certainly assunptions can be made in
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that regard. | think the sinplest assunption is that

t he peaker plants, the sinple-cycle units would sinply
operate in the ozone season. Al their em ssions woul d
be ozone season enissions from May to Septenber, the
five-nonth full ozone season. Beyond that, they may be
nore concentrated in June, July and August.

In terms of the conbined-cycle facilities, nost of
these facilities are in fact permtted for continuous
operation, 12 nonths a year, 8,760 hours per year, so it
woul d be sinply a matter of using the appropriate
arithnetic. Either five-twelfths of those enissions
woul d be the ozone season enissions potentially, or if
you just want to do June, July and August, it would be--
three-twel fths of those totals would be the permitted
em ssi ons.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: For the record, again
referring to-- or still referring to Dorge Exhibit 3,
are any of these conbi ned-cycle, or are they
single-cycle? W-- | again amnot particularly
interested in any one, but sort of a mix. Wat are we
| ooki ng at here?

MR ROVAINE: You're looking at a mix here. Sone

are conbi ned-cycle, sone are sinple-cycle, and to ness
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it upalittle bit, some are in fact permtted to
initially operate as sinple-cycle, and the permt then
al l ows conversion to a conbi ned-cycle facility.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Again, back on the NOx tons,
in doing sone rough math, it looks to ne like that tota
of the facilities listed here, the total em ssions
permt is about 7,000 tons per year, give or take sone.
Wuld it be the agency's anticipation that these
facilities will actually emt 7,000 tons of NOx?

MR ROVAINE: No, it would not.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: And again, can you explain
why you woul d anticipate that the actual em ssions woul d
be sonething | ess than the 7,000?

MR ROVAINE Well, as | said, we are permtting
these facilities for their potential to emt. For
exanpl e, conbi ned-cycle facilities, the assunption is
made or the request for permitting is that they be
all owed to operate continuously. One of the questions
that was rai sed about the conbined-cycle facilities was
whet her they would in fact be base-load units, whether
they would in fact operate flat out, whether they would
be so-called cyclic units or |oad-follow ng units--
think that's the term nol ogy that's being used-- that

woul d cone on at sone point where there is an increased
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demand above that for base-load plants but those plants
do in fact operate sinply in the sunmer or the wi nter
but do not operate year-round at full | oad.

The exact operation of those plants will in fact
depend on how the demand for electricity rose, how the
seasonal variation of that denmand rose or changes. All
we can say is that certainly these facilities will not
operate continuously at this point in tine or the next
couple of years after they're started. | don't believe
there's denmand for these |levels of operation. Certainly
coal and nucl ear power plants can operate nuch |ess
expensively to provide power if that's all that's needed
at that point in tine.

In terms of the peaking plants, again, peaking
pl ants only operate when other cyclic power plants or
base- | oaded power plants can't provide power for the
nost part. To the extent that a conbined-cycle facility
can provi de power, that could reduce the anount of
operation of peaking plants then. So there is a great
deal of uncertainty about exactly how nuch these
i ndi vi dual plants woul d operate.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: If we assune that the
regul ation-- regulatory proposal currently before the

board in the NOx trading rule, NOx SIP call rule, does
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becone | aw, what effect do you anticipate that woul d
have on whether or not the-- or the anount of enissions
that come fromthese facilities? Wat would be the
consequence of that |aw being in place?

MR ROVAINE: Under the NOx SIP call budget rule
the facilities would have to obtain allowances for those
em ssions. That would put a value on ninimzing
em ssi ons beyond what there currently is. It would
certainly act as another force encouraging facilities to
m ni m ze em ssions and woul d certainly be another force
to consider in the siting, when a facility began
operation, so it'd be another market force that would
tend to add an additional cost to operation

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: There's been comment ed
various tines in the record that-- is the effect that
peaker plants are sonehow avoi di ng BACT-- B-A-CT-- and
LAER-- L-A-E-R- by virtue of certain regulatory
constructs that exist now. Do you see that the NOx
trading rule in sone effect gets to the sane point in
terms of inposing limtations on the ability of new
facilities to emt w thout necessarily BACT or LAER
testing present?

MR ROVAINE: Could you please restate the

question? | was-- You added that tail end about BACT or
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LAER.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: I'Il try. | had enough
time-- difficulty getting to that point. | did see that
M ss Bassi was about ready to leap in, and perhaps maybe
she understood ne better than | do nyself and coul d
answer that.

MS. BASSI: This is-- I'mnot sure | amthe right
person to answer this. BACT and LAER are-- at | east
BACT is a technol ogy-based limtation. Wat the SIP
call or sub-part Wthat we have proposed before you in
R01-9 does is limt the total nunber of em ssions. It
doesn't inpose a technol ogy-based control neasure. It
just Iimts em ssions and leaves it to the conpanies to
deci de how they're going to operate or if they're going
tolimt control or whatever. So in terns of the |evel
of em ssions, perhaps it gets to a simlar point. In
terms of the control technol ogy applied, perhaps it gets
to a simlar point just through practical application
but not through regulatory requirenent.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: It seens to me fromthe chair
that | sit in, an inportant thing that we do is limt
the total anount of em ssions because that is the
environnental |y appropriate thing to do. | nean, if

it's the enmissions that cause an environmental problem
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our goal ought to be to cut down enissions. Should | be
bot hered by whether that emi ssions control is done by

i mposition of something we call BACT or sonething we
call LAER or sonething we call market forces as |long as
we get there?

MS. BASSI: You're asking for our opinion?

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: |'m asking for--

M5. BASSI: The end point is the sane. |If you view
control measures as limting em ssions, then, yes, how
you get there is-- theoretically doesn't natter.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: So ny question was, are we
getting to that ideal goal of environnental managenent
of limting em ssions in ways through the NOx trading
programthat in effect are the sane-- end up in the sane
way that if we were doi ng BACT and LAER we woul d al so
get to?

MR ROVAINE: | can answer that. That certainly is
not the case.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Not the case.

MR ROVAINE: The NOx SIP call addresses one aspect
of it. BACT and LAER would in fact address a different
di mensi on. BACT and LAER would require a certain |evel
of em ssions control irregardl ess of the anmount of

emssions. |If that is in fact a policy objective, then
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that policy objective would be satisfied-- can only be
satisfied through a BACT or LAER requirenent. It can't
be satisfied through a NOx budget crunch

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  You don't think that
conpani es would be interested in applying BACT or LAER
at their equipnent so that they can avoid having to
pur chase al | owances?

MR ROVAINE: | don't know enough about the actua
cost of allowances as conpared to the cost of BACT or
LAER to know what is the econonic decision a conpany
wi Il make in those circunstances.

BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: Let nme wap up ny part of
this exploration sinply by taking us over to Dorge
Exhibit 2, which is a different subset of permts
i ssued, and | would just ask the broad question whether
any of the responses that you' ve had that have focused
on Exhibit 2, Dorge Exhibit 2, would differ if we were
focused instead on Dorge Exhibit 2.

MR ROVAINE: M understanding is that all the
facilities that are on Dorge Exhibit 2 are in fact
sinple-cycle units. W don't have any conbi ned-cycl e
units present. Therefore, the conmments with regard to
sinple-cycle units apply with regard to how you woul d

assume what their actual em ssions mght be. That's it.
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BOARD MEMBER FLEMAL: That concl udes, | guess, what
| wanted to ask for the nonent.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: | have a very quick
clarification question. Dorge Exhibits 2 and 3-- and
I'm- makes no difference to me who in the agency
responds to this-- but they're not current, are they?
Are there nore permts that have issued that are not
listed on Dorge Exhibits 2 and 3?

M5. ZI NGLE:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Do you know how nany,
roughl y?

MR, ROVAI NE: No, because | haven't counted up how
many are in Dorge Exhibits 2 and 3.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Ckay.

MR ROVAINE: | coul d--

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Before you | eave, could you
tell us?

MR ROVAINE: | think our goal was to provide that
information in witing as opposed to conment at the | ast
m nute so you get the best possible infornation.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Good.

MR ROVAINE: For exanple, just the other day we

had di scussi ons about |ndeck-Libertyville. |Indeck has
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turned down by the l[ocal conmmunity.
BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Geat. I'Il look for it in

Novenber. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG:  When you prepare that docunent,
woul d you include all of the information that's on these
colums on Dorge Exhibit 1 and 2 so that we-- in terns
of the time limts of those kinds of things? 2 and 3,
isit?

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Unh- huh

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Okay. I n particular, | have a
coupl e of questions about linmtations on permts in
terns of tine. | guess ny question is | don't
under stand how the process works. |If you could wal k ne
through that a little bit. Wen the application is
filed, it's filed with a certain suggested linmtation
both in terms of NOx emissions and in terns of tine
[imtation? |Is that correct, or is there another sort
of scenario in terns of how that works in terns of the
permt limtations that are contained in the ultinmate
permt?

MR ROVAINE: Ckay. There is variation in the

applications, and the purpose of an application is for
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that applicant to denonstrate conpliance. Wat we would

like to see ideally in all applications is infornation

227
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY

on the short-termem ssion rates, exactly what they're
goi ng to guarantee the performance of the turbine in
terms of pounds per hour of emissions and in terns of
PPM em ssi ons; then, knowing that information, an idea
of level of utilization they would Iike to be pernmitted
at either in ternms of fuel consunption or in hours of
operati on.

W have a bias toward fuel consunption. It's the
sort of thing that's it easier to keep track of a gas
neter-- we all know what those are-- to see how nuch
fuel's consuned. And then we'd like to see their
request for annual emnissions and a calculation or their
expl anati on of how t hey' ve devel oped their estimate for
annual em ssions.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG You started that response by
saying "we'd like to see.™

MR ROVAINE: Right.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG What are you required to-- Wat
is the conpany required to give you?

MR ROVAINE: The conpany is required to give us

i nformati on on short-term em ssions fromthe turbine.
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The conpany i s--
CHAI RVAN MANNI NG What do you nean by that,

short-termem ssions fromthe turbine? Daily? Hourly?
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Weekl y?

MR ROVAINE: Hourly em ssions.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Ckay.

MR ROVAINE:  And- -

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG So you' I I have that information
in every peaker plant application or every application
for-- one of these applications will have that
i nformation.

MR ROVAINE: | believe so, yes.

CHAI RMAN MANNI NG Ckay.

MR ROVAINE: Beyond that, the fornms do request
i nformati on on hours of operation, but some people say
that's just general information. W'd also |like to have
the permt limts established based on fuel
consunption. Wen people do do that, then they provide
us a separate explanation regarding fuel consunption to
annual em ssions. |f an application does not provide
that information, we would sinply multiply their
representations about hourly emnmissions tinmes the maxi num

hours of operation that they've provided to come up with
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t he annual emissions that are represented by that
appl i cation.
CHAI RVAN MANNI NG So the annual emissions that are

represented are considering just the hours of operation,
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or are they considering a 12-nonth year?
MR ROVAINE | guess |I'd say it's the sane. W're

| ooki ng at hours of operation being how nany hours per
year they operate. W express that in terns of what's
t he maxi mum hours per day, maxi mum days per week,

maxi mum weeks per year, or other representation of how
many hours per year the facility would operate or the
t urbi nes woul d operate.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG So from your perspective, the
nunber 249, if that's the permtted nunber, it's 249 NOx
em ssions, obviously, for whatever tinme frane the
facility is permtted to be in operation.

MR ROVAINE: 249 tons per year for any year that
that facility operates.

CHAIl RMAN MANNI NG As restricted by the tinme of the
permts.

MR ROVAINE: By the tine of the--

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG As restricted by tine in the

permts itself.
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MR ROVAINE: |If the pernit also contains a
restriction that you shall not operate nore than so many
hours per year, that would al so be another restriction
on that facility, another dinmension of limtation on the

facility. Again, that would apply as a running total of
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12 nonths of information, of data. If we say, for
exanpl e, you shall not operate nore than 1500 hours per
year, that woul d be 1500 hours for each 12-nonth period
of tine. W do have a limtation in terns of fue
consunption, but again, on each 12-nonth period of tine.
CHAI RMAN MANNI NG I n your responses on page 4, you
tal ked about how you had to go to great lengths to
convi nce the USEPA of the appropriateness of certain
board rules that require only seasonal enissions
l[imtations. Could you expand on that a little bit and
for the record give us what those board rules are that
you' re tal ki ng about ?
M5. BASSI: The first one that | recall that we
had-- that we did this in was the-- it was the narine
| oading-- it was the mari ne vessel operations in the St
Louis area in the Metro East non-attainnent area, so it
appeared in part 219, and then we brought 218 to conform

with this. This was the first seasonal rule that we had
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proposed to USEPA, and we spent a deal of tine talking
to themabout it before they were willing to accept it.
Mari ne vessel loading. | think that's what we call it.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG And their concern is-- what was
their concern?

MS. BASSI: The Cean Air Act is structured around
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annual limtations, so this-- and our reasoni ng was
ozone is a seasonal problem it's not an annual problem
in this state, and therefore, seasonal controls should
be all that are required to-- the purpose of the rule
was to be one of the rules that helps us to attain the
ozone standard and-- or to neet other simlar
requirenents that were related to the ozone standard,
and therefore, in-- since we were presenting it to USEPA
in that formor for those purposes, then accepting a
seasonal control program should be okay. | nean, they
should do that. And that was earlier in the 90's, and
since then, obviously, they've cone around to al so see
t hat seasonal controls have sonme val ue.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG | guess the concern that's been
expressed on the record which I'd |like the agency to
speak to, if you could, is the idea with these

particul ar plants operating only in the high ozone
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season, during the three nonths, perhaps June through
the end of August, that there's a greater concern
regardi ng environnental inpact because all of the NOx
being emtted presumably or potentially during those
three nonths, causing then a greater inpact on citizens
than woul d be had we been considering themon an entire

12-nonth year or 12-nonth basis.
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M5. BASSI: Can we have a nonent ?
CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Go ahead
(Di scussion held off the record.)

MR ROVAINE: | think the sinple answer is that
that is correct. The USEPA regul ations do not apply to
PSD programwi th an adj usted seasonal equival ent
applicability threshold. It is sinply an annua
nunber. |If the decision was made that we want to have a
conpar abl e programthat does consi der seasona
applicability, we are fortunate that sone of the things
we have done with nmarine vessel |oading would provide us
a basis to do that.

CHAIl RVAN MANNI NG Thank you. Elena, do you have a
fol | ow up?

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: | do, in a slightly

different area. Page 15 of the agency's response to the
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guestions we had subnmitted to you, the | ast paragraph on
that page, there is a discussion concerning the
expectation of the agency that there'll be greater
anounts of carbon nonoxi de and volatile organic
materials during |l ow | oad operations, and the question |
have is with respect to the |ast sentence on that page
on that paragraph, if an application is conservatively

devel oped. Are you referring to the application by the
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permttee?

MR, ROVAINE: Yes, permittee application

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: So are there paraneters that
t he agency could include to assure that the applications
woul d all be conservatively devel oped, or is there a
shortcomng in the application process that seens to
permt some subjectivity rather than objective
paraneters, thus causing you to qualify your statenent
with the word "conservatively devel oped"?

MR ROVAINE: | don't think it's a question of the
revi ew of the applications.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: |'m not--

MR ROVAINE: It's a question of the approach that
a particular applicant has taken in the devel opnent

application. It goes back to the |arger point that
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dependi ng on the size of the facility-- people are
trying to maximze the capability to operate-- they
won't have a pernit that allows themthe nost possible
hours of operation. That's nuch easier to do for a
snmaller facility than it is for a larger facility.

So for a smaller facility, they mght sinply say,

the nost-- or the lowest I'Il ever operate is at 50
percent load; |I'Il take that emi ssion rate at 50 percent
load; I'Il base ny entire application based on eni ssion
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rate of 50 percent |oad because | know that ny em ssion
rate of VOM and CO would be lower if I'mat a higher

| oad; that certainly is an acceptable practice for us to
devel op sone application that would be factually in
conpliance with the regul ati ons and provi des us an
approach we can verify enmssions; it would satisfy the
standards for issuance of the permt.

A person that has a larger facility may not be able
to do that without triggering nmajor thresholds if he
wanted to be pernitted at the hours they want. 1In that
ci rcunst ance, they come up with a nore refined approach
to preparing the application where they then estimte a
certain percentage of the tinme we mght be operating

bet ween 50 and 75 percent |load at a certain em ssion
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rate; we then estimate for the remainder of the tine
we'll be operating between 75 and 100 percent load at a
| ower emission rate; in those circunstances, we then
develop a nore conplex permt that reflects that there
could be two different nodes of operation where we woul d
expect there to be different em ssion rates being
achieved. Then that's acceptable. Either approach
shows conpliance with applicable regulations and all ows
an applicant to denonstrate that their emissions will be

bel ow the rel evant applicability threshol ds.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Do the applications-- does
the material submtted i nclude any requirenent that
there be cal culations for 50 percent |oad, 75 percent
| oad, and what the emissions will be for each of those
obj ective | oad characteristics?

MR ROVAINE: There is no requirenment that that be
done. That information is submtted by sone applicants
and not by others.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Is it information that you
all would find hel pful ?

MR ROVAINE: |If we would find it helpful in a
particul ar application, we would request that

information. It is certainly information that we have
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the authority to request if we need it as part of our
revi ew.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: But you've not been
requesting it?

MR ROVAINE: If we don't need it, no

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Smal |l er operations as
opposed to | arger operations was another characteristic
you nentioned in your response to a prior question of
mne. Wiat's your definition of smaller as opposed to
larger in the context of that question?

MR, ROVAINE: The small est peaker applications are

236
KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY
singl e-turbi ne 45-nmegawatt units, very snmall. They can
accept very conservative nunbers. Internediate size nmay

be 300 negawatts; large facilities, Reliant-Aurora, 850
negawatts; and then of course you have El wood, which is
a giant.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG That's not the El wood we
vi sited, though.

MR ROVAINE: Actually, it is the Elwod you
vi sited, because they have an application-- well, they
have a pernit that allows themto put in fourteen
turbines, as M. Nesvig pointed out. They have built

the four sinple-cycle turbines. They have not comenced
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construction on the ten conbi ned-cycl e turbines that
they're authorized to install. They' ve al so cone back
and currently have pendi ng before us applications to
install another five sinple-cycle units, which would
bring their capacity for sinple-cycle generation up to
somet hing on the order of 1500 negawatts, which is a
sizable facility.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Thank you, M. Romai ne.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG M. Zak, we appreciate the
responses to noise, and we don't have a | ot of questions
regardi ng noi se. However, regarding the issue of

| owi npact noise-- that's sort of the hum- by the way,
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we-- the board gets a lot of citizens enforcenent
actions in air conditioning areas, and they're sone of
our nost vol um nous cases, very difficult to deal with
But at any rate, mnmy question is, the board' s current
regul ations that we have in place, | think your response
was that they are adequate to address all of the
concerns that have been raised in this procedure.

MR ZAK: Yes, Madam Chairnman, | believe they are.
The current regulations are | think stringent enough to
provi de adequate protection for the comunities.

They're-- Actually, Illinois has the nost in-depth
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nmet hod of measuring noi se of any state in the union
Because of that in-depth | ook that we can take at noise
em ssi ons, whether they be, you m ght say, |ow inpact or
hi gh i npact, as the case may be, but with the | ow inpact
ones, the instrunmentation now exists to really get a
very clear picture of what we're dealing with

And once in a while we do run into a situation
where the nunerical regulations nay not be totally
applicable to a very unusual situation, but in a case
like that, the way | would handle that would be to take
t he nmeasurenents in a very sophisticated manner and
assenble the information and then present it as a

nui sance case under the nuisance regul ati on backed up by
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t he nunerical neasurenents that woul d establish why in
that particular case we had a noi se problemthat was of
concern and present it to the board for their decision
on that kind of case

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG You' re tal ki ng about your work
with citizens, though. You're not talking about the
State coming forward. W haven't seen a state
enf orcenent action on noise-- | don't know that the
board's ever seen a state enforcenent action on noi se.

MR ZAK: Well, yes. W had | think the | ast one
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in 1981.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG That was before me. | was here
in Springfield doing sonething else at that tine. M
guesti on about noise really was nore toward our
regul ations and not toward the pernitting process or
lack thereof. | nean, clear fromthe record as well is
that noi se regul ations are not taken into consideration
interms of the permtting process, the overal
permtting process with the agency, and | think there's
no dispute in the record that that is the current
si tuati on.

MR ZAK: Yes, it is.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG Ckay. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: We're going to take a
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five-mnute break right here. W'IIl cone back and
hopefully wap things up pretty quickly.
(Brief recess taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Ckay. W're back on the
record now, and we're ready for sone foll ow up questions
fromthe board nenbers.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Thank you. | have a
gquestion that nmay best be directed to M. Kaleel, and if

that's the case, if we could sinply obtain a response
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fromthe agency in witing upon his availability, and
that is this: Wen we were at the Elwood facility at
our site visit, we observed that Elwood had a nonitoring
panel at the point of generator. That nonitoring pane
appeared to indicate a conti nuous readi ng of enissions.
Assumi ng that is the case, does the agency receive
records of those continuous nonitoring-- of that
continuous nonitoring data, and has it or would it be
able to conpare that data to the nodeling data that M.
Kal eel has testified about?

MR ROVAINE: W do receive that data. That data
isin fact reported to USEPA as part of the acid rain
program That data doesn't have any particul ar
relationship to the nodeling that M. Kal eel perforned.

That data sinply indicates the emi ssion concentration in
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the stack, the pound per hour em ssion rate that's
comng out of the unit. Al the nodeling of M. Kaleel
and the air quality planning group works with that pound
per hour data then predict anbient concentrations in the
at nosphere.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Does M. Kal eel use the
actual pound per hour enissions data in the nodel s that

he testified about? | didn't think he did.
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M5. BASSI: | think we need to answer this in
writing.

MR ROVAI NE: Yeah. Actually, though, | believe--
I know the answer to that, because this is an inventory
question. W can check this to make sure. M
understanding is at that point in tine, M. Kaleel did
not |ook at the actual emnission data; he was working on
the permt.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: That's why |'m asking you to
do this next step.

MR ROVAINE: And certainly, when we are issuing
permts, we base our evaluation on the nmaxi mum em ssion
rates represented in the permt applicants. W do not
make any consideration for what we expect themto be.
If you want a permt at this hourly emi ssion rate, we

want to see nodeling that shows that that is--
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: | understand. And do you
know whet her that nonitoring panel also captures
start-up and shut-down em ssions as a separate 15- to
30-m nute stream of data?

MR ROVAINE: | believe it does. | would like to
verify that.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: Okay. |'d like infornmation
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about that, if it's available to the agency. And
finally, if there is data available, I'd like to see the
change in emssions if a facility such as El wood has
operated at |ower |oad, 50 percent or 75 percent, and
how di fferent the em ssions have been at that |evel of

| oad as opposed to 100 percent.

MR ROVAINE: W can try to obtain that data.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: One nore question, and that
is, do you know whet her each of the peaker plants that
you' ve permtted so far have sinmilar panels that capture
simlar data to what we saw at El wood, sonething |like
t hat ?

MR ROVAINE: No, they do not. The peaker plants
are subject to the USEPA's acid rain program Under the
acid rain program facilities that meet a particul ar
definition do not have to install continuous enission

nonitoring systens, so not all facilities have installed
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conti nuous enission nonitoring systens. If a facility
exceeded those thresholds, it would then have to go
ahead and have installed a continuous em ssion
nmoni toring system Those threshol ds are--

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S:  Thank you.

MR ROVAINE: -- operation at nore than 10 percent
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capacity as a three-year average or operation at nore
than 20 percent capacity in a single year. That is sort
of the-- what | would call a working definition of a
peaker plant. It's a working definition because it
sinply relates to whet her the USEPA believes that that
| evel of operation warrants the effort to install a
conti nuous em ssion nonitoring systemor not.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: And capacity is defined as?

MR ROVAINE: Well, 100 percent capacity would be
operating at full |oad 8,760 hours per year. 8,760
hours, which I just rattle off, but that's 24 hours a
day tinmes 7 days a week, 52 weeks a year.

BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: So by definition, peakers
are not expected to be full capacity entities for
pur poses of USEPA acid rain program The pernmits that
you issue typically will be for shorter time periods
than 24-7 at 365.

MR ROMAINE: That's correct.
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELIS: So Elwood is an anomaly in
that it does have continuous em ssions nonitoring?
MR ROVAINE: | think what you would probably |ike

is us to add this to your list of information that we

try--
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BOARD MEMBER KEZELI S: Thank you very much, M.
Romai ne.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Al so, when we visited the El wood
facility, we noticed and I think we've heard testinony
in the record of a nunber of the peaker plants that are
bei ng constructed are poised to in the future at sone
poi nt perhaps becone a conbi ned-cycle facility. W
asked you the question, 17, | think, on page 30, in
terms of what other permtting requirenents are going
to-- to wal k us through, basically, a permt that's
permtted now for a peaker plant, when and if it ever
becones a conbi ned-cycle facility. Coviously that would
i nvol ve a process change, and |'m wondering whet her the
nature of the emi ssions as well as the anount of
em ssions woul d change too and if you could respond a
little bit to that as well as wal k us through what ki nds
of agency involvenent there will be in that change, if
it happens.

MR ROMVAINE: That's-- It said in the answer, we
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believe it would trigger the requirenent for a federa
prevention of significant deterioration permt. Gven
t he continuous operation of conbined-cycle units or the

fact that people will request permts for continuous
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operation, it appears that it would exceed the
applicable thresholds to trigger PSD applicability.

Accordingly, before we would issue a pernit that
woul d aut hori ze conversion of a sinple-cycle facility to
a conbi ned-cycle facility, they would have to
denonstrate that they had best available contro
t echnol ogy for conbi ned-cycl e operation

Conbi ned-cycl e plants are very anenable to use of
add-on controls for NOx emissions. Sinply, SCRis an
avai l abl e control technology. W would certainly expect
that there be sone addition on NOx control technol ogy at
that time. Wen | say addition of NOx contro
technol ogy, the difference between a sinple-cycle unit
and a conbi ned-cycle unit is in fact the waste heat
boiler. The control technol ogy that have been used for
turbines in fact rely upon a box, and they fit very
nicely into the boiler, so the boiler used for waste
heat recovery provides sort of a necessary structure to
put in a NOx control system

Beyond that, they would be required to do further
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air quality analysis and nodeling. They'd have to
denonstrate conpliance with PSD i ncrenents. W would

have to go through public notice, and as a nsjor
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project, they woul d be sent through federal procedures
that do provide for citizen appeal and review by the
Envi ronnent al Appeal s Board.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG W' ve al so heard in the record
the difference-- and | know you're not in the water
division, so this may be for M. N ghtingale. Wat is
t he agency's involvenent in a conbined-cycle in terns of
the water? | just want to get this clear on the record.

MR N GHTI NGALE: Well, the difference would be--
as far as we would be concerned woul d be that the
di scharge woul d be subject to, in addition to the state
regul ations, the regul ati ons under 40 CFR 423, so it
woul d be considered a categorical industry, and we woul d
al so have to incorporate those regul ations.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG And just to clarify on the
record as well, in terms of any water use, the agency
has no invol verent or regulatory authority over the use
or the drawi ng of any of the water for any of those
pl ant s.

MR NI GHTI NGALE: That is correct.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Ckay.
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MS. LIU M. Ronmine, if add-on controls were

pl aced on a peaker sinple-cycle plant and that plant
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were | ater expanded to a conbi ned-cycle plant, how woul d
t hose add-on controls be used or not used in the
conbi ned- cycl e plant operation, or would they actually
hi nder operation?

MR ROVAINE: [If an add-on control device for NOX
were installed on a sinple-cycle unit, it would probably
have to have sone feature to address the tenperature of
t he exhaust gases, perhaps sone heat exchange or cooling
system Those features of a cooling system probably
woul d no | onger be necessary. | don't know for sure
that the installation of a control systeminstalled in a
sinpl e-cycle unit could be converted over to a
conbi ned- cycl e operati on.

Ms. LIU  From an engi neering and econonic
standpoint, is it possible that the peaker sinple-cycle
pl ants through their permt applications are avoiding
the need for these add-on controls by linmiting the hours
of operation so that if the plant does expand and it is
required to do add-on controls, those can just be placed
inat that tine?

MR ROVAINE: | think that had two parts to the

question. Certainly it's true that-- very obvious that
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peaker plants prefer to be pernmitted as non-nmgj or
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sources. In looking at the different facilities,

t hi nk some of them probably have to work very hard to
cone in as non-ngjor sources. Qhers | think sinply
take an exam nation of where they're at and how t hey
grow their applications to conme in just for non-nmajor
sites, and | guess I'mnot prepared to really specul ate
on the engineering and economnm c aspects of what they're
trying to acconplish

M5. LIU  Wien all is said and done, how would
year-round operation of a conbined-cycle plant with
controls conpare to a peaker operation that doesn't have
controls, air em ssions controls, | guess?

MR ROVAINE: In what sense?

Ms. LIU Wen you | ook at your bal ance sheet at
the end of the year, the tons that you' ve emtted per
year of each pollutant for a conbined-cycle plant versus
a peaker plant, one that has controls since it's a mgjor
source and one not because it's a mnor source, how
woul d they differ?

MR ROVAINE: | think it depends on assunptions
that woul d be nade about the actual operating |evels of
those facilities. | think certainly at this point in

time, as | said, it's unlikely that a conbi ned-cycl e
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unit would in fact operate year-round. Probably would
be | oad-following or a sinple-cycle. You would have to
make assunpti ons about how rmuch a conbi ned cycl e woul d
actually be utilized at this point in time or mght be
ten years down the road when power consunption

i ncreases, as M. Silva said yesterday, and then you'd
al so have to make an assunpti on about how nmany hours per
year a peaker plant woul d operate.

MS. LIU  Thank you.

MR MZA LL: Good afternoon. In the agency's
Public Coment 9, the board' s question nunber 2, which
is at the bottom of page 5, the board asked the
question, please address whether any |ocalized inpacts--
for exanple, potentially exposing |local residents to
greater amounts of air pollutants-- present a health
concern with respect to air emissions fromexisting and
proposed peaker plants sited or to be sited near
residential areas or schools, and the agency's response
tal ks about nodeling, so this nmay be sonething for M.
Kal eel

There was sone term nology in the agency's response
that it would be hel pful to get clarification on. The
agency indicates in their response-- it said, "The

agency has required the applicants for proposed peaker
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pl ants, whether major or not, to address expected air
quality inpacts of expected em ssion sources. The

requi red anal yses are conservative (i.e., would tend to
overstate expected inpacts), and address inpacts at

| ocati ons where peak inpacts are expected to occur, even
as close as the source's fence lines."

If we could get sone clarification of what those
conservative aspects are of the nodeling, exactly what
nmakes it conservative, what are the features of the
nodel i ng. W tal ked sonewhat about seasonal em ssions,
the fact that there may be an annual limt but nost, if
not all, of the em ssions taking place in one season
Is that factored in? |Is that one of the conservative
el enents of the nodeling? And | don't know if anyone
here is familiar enough with nodeling to tal k about the
conservative aspects of the nodeling.

MR ROVAINE: In ternms of the entire discussion of
the conservative aspect of nodeling, it is certainly
much better handled by M. Kaleel. However, to that one
poi nt about what is being nodeled, if we're |ooking at
an hourly standard, |ike the hourly CO standard, we do
hourly nodel i ng based on the maxi mum hourly CO
em ssions. W do not use annual average enissions to

conpare to an hourly standard, so the em ssion rates we
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are | ooking at are the maxi num em ssion rates for the
particular time period for that particular air quality
st andar d.

MR MCALL: And that is for all pollutants?

MR ROVAINE: That's for the criteria pollutants
that are nodel ed, particulate matter, S, NOx and
car bon nonoxi de.

MR MZA LL: Thank you. And then the |ast sentence
of the agency's response to question nunber 2 reads,
"The nodel i ng has consi stently denonstrated that the
air quality inpacts of the peakers are small, if not
insignificant, and will not cause or contribute to
violation of the national anbient air quality
standards."” In that response, it would be helpful to
have sone el aboration on the term"small, if not
insignificant" in describing the air quality inpacts.
Perhaps that's M. Kaleel's summary of--

MR ROVAINE: Since he's not here, | wll volunteer
himto answer that question.

MR MCALL: I'msorry. You said you--

MR ROVAINE: M. Kaleel will answer that.

CHAl RVAN MANNI NG He was vol unteering M. Kal eel,
I think.

MR MZA LL: | thought you were vol unteering
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yourself. And along the sanme |lines we tal ked about, in
that sentence it says, "consistently denonstrated that
the air quality inpacts of the peakers are small, if not
insignificant." By air quality inpacts, are we talking
about inpacts in neighborhoods adjacent to peaker plants
that are siting near residential areas or near schools,
or are we talking nore generally about air inpacts in
terns of nmeeting-- or not causing or contributing to a
vi ol ati on of NAAQS?

MR ROVAINE: W're talking generally in terns of
the entire body of applications for which we have
nodeling. W're talking very specifically in terns of
| ooki ng at those applications, wherever the nmaxi nrum
i npacts are, that they have been snmall, if not
i nsignificant.

MR MCALL: If you'd just for the record-- when
we' re tal ki ng about determ ning conpliance wth NAAGS,
where is that determ ned? Were are the-- Are there
predesi gnated nonitoring stations throughout the Chicago
non-attai nment area, for exanple? Were is that-- Were
woul d that be denonstrated, the actual data?

MR ROVAINE: The sinplest answer is everywhere.
The purpose of nodeling is to identify the point of

nmaxi mum i npact and nmake sure that that point of naxi num
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i mpact conplies with the anbient air quality standard.
That's why the point was nmade that sonetines the maxi num
inmpact is the fence line. In ternms of a facility, you
can't address its inpacts on its own property, but as
soon as the emi ssions go over the property line, it has
to be in strict conpliance with the air quality

st andar d.

MR MCA LL: So if that maxi numinpact or peak
i mpact were to be a nei ghborhood adjacent to a peaker
pl ant, presunably the agency would require or-- that
that not-- that that nmaxi muminpact not exceed NAAQS for
all the criteria of pollutants?

MR ROVAINE: That's correct. Like |l said, | have
to qualify, but obviously the Chicago area is designated
a non-attainnment area for ozone. The discussion of
ozone is different than a discussion for a-- these
pol lutants in the di spersion nodel

MR MCA LL: Thank you.

MR RAO A couple of questions regardi ng your
responses to the questions. M first question concerns
the start-up and shut-down em ssions. |n your response
to | think question 1-d, page 5, you nentioned that any
concerns regarding start-up and shut-down emni ssions can

be addressed to PSD and non-attai nnent NSR if those
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prograns are applicable to establish appropriate
provisions to mnimze enissions as part of BACT or LAER
determination. | wanted to know if the agency has
addressed start-up and shut-down em ssions as part of
your BACT determinations for an incunbent peaker plant.

MR ROVAINE: W have provisions that do require
different facilities to take appropriate neasures to
mnimze enissions during start-up and shut-down. W do
not have specific nunerical limtations on the em ssions
during start-up and shut - down.

MR RAO Are you aware of any other state, |ike
California, requiring nunerical limtations during
start-up and shut - down?

MR ROVAINE: That is sonething that we
periodically discuss with other states, and there is a
range of opinion on whether it's appropriate to
establish this Iimtation or not. Certainly sone states
have gone down that path.

MR RAO Do the peaker plant-- operators of peaker
pl ants, when they propose or file the application, do
they give you information regarding start-up and
shut - down emi ssions and duration of the start-up and

shut - down process?
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not initially provided that we do have to request.

MR RAO So you do get information regardi ng, you
know, how long it takes for a plant to start up and what
the em ssions |evels woul d be?

MR ROVAINE: W get information on the duration of
start-up if that's readily available. W get various
estimates of em ssions during start-up

MR RAO On page 15 of your response, | think the
response to question 6, in the first paragraph you
referred to operating permt applications. | think this
is the first tine | have seen any reference nmade to
operating permits for peaker plants. Could you for the
record explain a little bit about the operating permt
process, what you look for and, you know, what kind of
information is required?

MR ROVAINE: Well, Illinois does have a two-stage
permtting programfor new em ssion units. The first
stage is to get a construction pernmt, and that
construction permt provides the authorization to go
ahead and construct and does establish what | would cal
the specifications, the requirenents that the facility

has to neet.
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The purpose of the operating permt, then, is to

verify once the facility has been built that it's
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conplying with those specifications. As part of that
process as well, there may be further enhancenents, the

nature of the record-keeping, the reporting or certain
programmatic requirenents for the facility. Peaker
plants would in fact be considered maj or sources for
pur poses of the operating permt. They would for the
nost part be Title V sources subject to the Cean Ar
Act permit program As such, we would have public
notice of opportunity for hearing before issuing an
operating permt for a peaker plant.

MR RAO Do they have to make any denonstrations
to show that whatever that-- you know, operationa
requi renents that they obtained on their initial
construction permits, that they do neet those, you know,
assertions or information that they file with you with
the construction application?

MR ROVAINE: They certainly have to subnit a
conpliance certification stating that they're in
conpliance with all applicable requirenents. That would
include any limtations under the rule, any conditions

inthe pernit. They do not have to certify conpliance
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To the extent that there are changes in the

application, such as differences in plot |ayout, we do
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not consider those inportant for the nost part. |If we
did, we'd put limtations on the permt hol der subject
to those requirenents, and then they would have to
denonstrate conpliance with it as a permt condition

MR RAO And one last question. Actually, it's
nore of a clarification concerning your response on the
XONON t echnol ogy for NOx control. | think your response
is on page 28 of Public Comment Nunber 9, | think. 1In
your response, you nentioned that this technol ogy has
not yet been devel oped for larger turbines. Do you have
any information as to, you know, what capacity turbines
this technology is currently avail abl e?

MR ROVAINE: | believe the denmonstration, it's
al ways referred to that the Kawasaki turbine are the
size of approximately 1.5 negawatts, 1 1/2 negawatts, so
t hat bei ng- -

MR RAO Fairly snmall

MR ROVAINE: -- a hundredth the size of the El wood
facility.

MR RAO Thank you.
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MR ROVAINE: | guess | would comment, we will be
overjoyed when that technol ogy is devel oped for |arge
turbi nes, because that is a very prom sing technol ogy.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN. M. Romaine, | just wanted to
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ask you a few nore questions. Earlier | asked you sone
questi ons about BACT and LAER, and you gave ne a very
i nteresting response as to why they woul d not
voluntarily install this, and |I've been thinking some
nore about it, and I wonder if you could enlighten nme a
little bit nore about BACT and LAER and what it m ght
nmean in Illinois if we were to suggest to the Governor
that we shoul d consi der inposing BACT and LAER
t echnol ogy-driven requi renents on these types of power
pl ants, the peakers, the conbi ned-cycles, what that
would nmean in Illinois as far as air quality goes,
benefits to the environnent and the people of Illinois
and possibly also the ramifications to the industry.

CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Di d you nean conbi ned-cycl e or
si ngl e-cycl e?

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: | thought | said peakers and
conbi ned- cycl e.

MR ROVAINE: | think the answer to conbi ned-cycle

is pretty straightforward. At this point, the new
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conbi ned-cycle facilities are najor sources. They are
subj ect to federal prevention of significant
deterioration program BACT is being treated as a
federal requirenent.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: How about for the
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non-attai nnent areas? Because | think your answer in
the-- your prepared answers to our questions address the
NSR program as well as the PSD programin the context of
BACT and LAER

MR ROVAINE: Could you clarify further, Ms.
M Fawn?

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Well, | can't seemto find it
right now, but if you wouldn't mnd addressing as to
what happened al so in the non-attai nnent areas.

MR ROVAINE: | guess at this point the entire
state is an attainment area for NOx, so in terns of NOX,
PSD applies state-w de. Conbi ned-cycle plants
state-w de are subject to the PSD program That woul d
not change with the NOX wai ver no matter what happens
with that. |f the NOx waiver were revoked, that would
add an additional requirement on top of the PSD, as NOx
woul d al so then be treated as an ozone precursor for

pur pose of non-attai nment New Source Revi ew.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN: Ckay. Thank you.

MR ROVAINE: It's just that, you know, NOx can
have dual citizenship. As a pollutant itself, it's an
attai nnent pollutant. As a precursor, it would be
treated as a non-attai nment pollutant.

In terms of sinple-cycle turbines, there is
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certainly a difference in what different nodels of
turbi nes can achieve, and if there were a requirenment in
pl ace for BACT for sinple-cycle turbines, people
proposing projects in Illinois would have to get the
best turbines for their particular niche. It would
sinply put pressure on certain manufacturers of turbines
to inprove the conbustion techni ques they have for those
turbines to conpete with the leaders in the field.

I think a nore interesting question is what the
i mplications would be for the difference between frane
turbine and aeroderivative turbines. Frane turbines are
generally larger. The frane turbines are certainly a
| eap ahead in NOx control, | would say, than the
aeroderivative turbines, and if there are particul ar
benefits for aeroderivative turbines, we have to
identify themif we're going to continue to have peaker

pl ants usi ng aeroderivative turbines.
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To the extent that BACT was applied, then certainly
the em ssions of the facility would be less. Pretty
straightforward. And to the extent those em ssions have
i mpact either locally or regionally would contribute to
|ower emissions in that regard. 1'll leave it at that.

BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you. Ch, | had one

other question. You nentioned earlier that you have
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polled or talked to your fell ow states about nunerica
limts for start-ups and shut-downs and you find a m xed
bag on that. Has the agency ever considered inposing
such limtations?

MR ROVAINE: No, we haven't. As we stated in our
response, we do not see that the |evels of emni ssions
during start-up are such to warrant those sorts of
limtations. W get into detailed provisions for
start-ups when we address things like sulfuric acid
pl ants, which have |long periods of start-up and last a
day or so, then it's a conplex chenical operation that
needs to be set into operation. These units start up
very quickly. They start up in a very consistent
fashion. The goal of our programis to make sure that
the conputer is properly programred to cone up with a

start-up that mnimzes enissions.
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BOARD MEMBER MCFAWN:  Thank you agai n.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Are there any nore
guestions? kay. Thank you very nuch. Do any of the
agency w tnesses have anything else they want to add or
suppl enent at this tine?

MR PHILLIPS: No, | don't think so.

HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON: Ckay. | just wanted to

gi ve you an opportunity.
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CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Thank you very much.
HEARI NG OFFI CER JACKSON:  Thank you. | will ask

again, then, if there are any other persons here who
wi sh to nake a presentation to the board today. Does
not look like it.

Let ne just conclude by renmi nding you that witten
public coments nmay be filed with the board. You may
file a witten public coment even if you have made an
oral presentation on the record. Those witten public
coments will be accepted until Novenber 6, and at this
point the board will then begin its deliberations and
hopeful |y make its recommendati ons by the | ast board
neeting this year

That's all | have. Thank you all very much. W've

received a |l ot of good information in these proceedi ngs,
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and we appreci ate your patience and your attention.
Thank you. W' re adjourned.

(Wher eupon the proceedi ngs were

adj ourned on Cctober 6, 2000, at

12:35 p.m)
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STATE OF ILLINO'S )
) SS
COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR)

I, KAREN BRI STOW a Notary Public and
Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the County of
St. Cair, State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTI FY t hat
was present at the Wlliam G Stratton Building, 401
South Spring Street, Springfield, Illinois, on Cctober
6, 2000, and did record the aforesaid proceedi ngs; that
sane was taken down in shorthand by nme and afterwards
transcri bed upon the typewiter, and that the above and
foregoing is a true and correct transcript of said

pr oceedi ngs.
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